

FACULTY SENATE

Executive Council

April 8, 2019 4:00 – 5:30 pm Waterman 427A

Minutes

Present: Professors Almstead, Beckage, Burns, Chittenden, Eyler, Harrington, Paris, Ross, Stickle

Absent: Professor Carney, Giangreco, Toolin

The meeting was called to order at 4:05 p.m. in Waterman 427A

I. **Approval of March 18, 2019 Minutes**. President Paris moved to approve the minutes as written. The motion was seconded and carried.

II. **Degree Corrections**. Laurie Eddy presented a degree correction from the College of Arts and Sciences for consideration.

Motion: Cathy Paris moved to approve the degree corrections as presented.

Vote: 7 Approve, 0 Oppose, 0 Abstain

- III. **Chair's Remarks** Cathy Paris made the following remarks:
 - The election for Senate Vice President will conclude today 4 pm, and results will be announced tomorrow.
 - Evan Eyler and Thomas Borchert were elected as at-large members to the Executive Council for the 2-year term beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2021
 - Thank you to the Executive Council members that participated in the interview process for the Interim Provost candidates.
 - A meeting is scheduled for April 9th with President Sullivan, Senate leadership, and the Dean of LCOM to discuss the COMU 1 residential learning course for the WE learning environment.
- IV. Report on Course Evaluation Platform Project Outcome, Thomas Chittenden reminded the Executive Council about the long history of passed resolutions by the SGA and Senate calling for the implementation of centrally supported Course Evaluation software at UVM. After the October 2017 Senate resolution passed, the Provost charged the Course Evaluation Software Work Group (CESWG) to oversee the RFP process. The CESWG submitted their final report to the Provost (by the February 15 deadline), with a unanimous recommendation for the adoption of eXplorance Blue as the standard centrally supported course evaluation solution. The Provost discussed the recommendation with the Council of Deans, and decided to postpone action on this project. Three reasons were provided including the leadership transition, possible competing priorities, and the need for an IT governance system to be in place before technology invesments are made. Thomas Chittenden has drafted a letter to Thomas Vogelmann, Chair of the Council of Deans to challenge the decision and request a meeting to gain more clarity on the concerns of the Deans.

- V. **Topic Ideas for August Campus-Wide Faculty Conference**. Continued discussion on this item will be taken up again at the May Executive Council meeting.
- VI. Curricular Affairs Consent Agenda. Laura Almstead presented two items: the CAC report out of items that do not require a Senate vote, and a proposal for a new Bachelor of Social Work degree in the College of Education and Social Services (CESS). Both reports are attached to these minutes.
 Motion: Cathy Paris moved to place the CAC consent agenda on the April Senate agenda
 Vote: 6 approve, 0 oppose, 0 abstain
- VII. Final Decision: Roundtable Discussion Topic for April Senate Meeting. Planning for a roundtable discussion at the April Senate meeting continued. Discussion included the importance of having a clear process and stated outcome for the roundtable. The final outcome of this discussion was to address the question raised by incoming President Garimella on the vision for the future of UVM in 10 years. Senators will be provided with a prompt to stimulate ideas for the future of UVM, and specific things that could advance the vision, or that would be a barrier to realizing the vision. Executive Council members will act as scribes at the roundtables. The outcome of the roundtable discussion will be shared at the end of the meeting, discussed at the May Senate meeting, and presented to President Garimella as the Senate's response to the question he posed to the UVM community during his visit. Cathy will write a framework for the question and distribute to the Executive Council members for feedback. Senators will receive the question with the Senate agenda one week prior to the April Senate meeting.

VIII. Agenda for P&P Meeting Monday, April 15, 9 a.m.

Civility and civic discourse were proposed as the topic.

IX. Draft Agenda for Faculty Senate Meeting of April 22

- Minutes of the March 25 Senate meeting (2 min)
- Resolution in Memoriam for Jill Tarule (CESS), (10 min)
- FS President's Remarks, Cathy Paris (5 min)
- UVM President's Remarks, Tom Sullivan (pending) (5 min)
- Curricular Affairs Committee Consent Agenda, Laura Almstead (5 min)
- Report on Course Evaluation Platform Project Outcome, Thomas Chittenden (10 min)
- Faculty Roundtable, Topic TBD (45 min)
- New Business (5 min)
- Adjourn

X. **New Business** 5 min

The meeting adjourned at 5:32 p.m.

Curricular Affairs Committee of the Faculty Senate

MEMO

To: The UVM Faculty Senate

From: Curricular Affairs Committee of the Faculty Senate, Laura Almstead, Chair

Date: April 4, 2019

Re: Items approved by the Curricular Affairs Committee that do not require a Faculty Senate vote

Request to transition the existing Master of Science in Dietetics (MSD) to an online program

The Department of Nutrition and Food Science (NFS) in the College of Agriculture and Life Sciences (CALS) submitted a proposal in conjunction with the Graduate College to transition the existing Master of Science in Dietetics (MSD) to an online program. Students will complete their coursework through online classes. As this is an accredited program, the course content will not be changed, only the mechanism of delivery. Additionally, students will still be required to complete supervised research for credit and 1,200 hours of supervised practice, but can do so where they live. A process for identifying preceptors and placing students in practicums outside Vermont has been developed as have mechanisms for advising students from a distance.

Currently, the Master of Science in Dietetics (MSD) is a residential program that includes 30 credits of coursework, evidence-based research credits, and 1,200 hours of supervised professional practice. Recruiting students to the program has been a challenge due to the relatively high cost of living and tuition for out-of-state students. Nationwide, the number of online MDS programs is increasing, and these programs are attractive to students because they have the opportunity to complete their supervised practice where they live. Converting UVM's program to an online format will put UVM in a better position to recruit students as well as expand diversity within the program by making it more accessible and affordable. This is an opportune time for the transition because in 2024 new professional regulations will go into effect that require students to have both a master's and a clinical practicum to become a practicing dietician. The current regulations only require a bachelor's degree and an internship/practicum.

The online format of the program will be available starting fall 2020 to allow the program time to transition courses to an online format and to determine best practices for distance supervision. Once the conversion is complete, only the online curriculum will be offered.

The proposal was supported by the Chair of NFS, Jean Harvey, the Dean of CALS, Thomas Vogelmann, the Dean of Continuing and Distance Education, Cynthia Belliveau, the Associate Dean for Public Health in the Larner College of Medicine, Jan Carney, and the Graduate College Executive Council.

<u>Substantial revision of the Individually Designed Major, BS Ed. in the College of Education and Social</u> Services

The College of Education and Social Services (CESS) submitted a proposal to substantially revise the existing Individually Designed Major (IDM) available through CESS. The revisions will be in place starting fall 2019.

The IDM is an interdisciplinary program of studies that allows self-motivated students to explore their interests in children, families and communities, and the programs, policies, and processes that shape our communal and individual experiences. Students in the program make connect CESS courses with courses offered in other units to create a major unique to their needs and interests that are not met through other existing CESS majors. Completion of an IDM major leads to a Bachelor of Science in Education, but does not include an endorsement for teacher licensure.

The revisions were developed based on the identified need to provide more direction to students and faculty regarding course selection and to ensure that students will take a sampling of courses from across the three departments in CESS. Additionally, the creation of a capstone experience brings the program into alignment with the recently established UVM assessment planning practices and processes. The revisions also seek to align the program with the High Impact Educational Practices identified by the American Association of Universities and Colleges. The revisions include:

- 1) reducing the overall number of credits required to graduate from 128 to 120, bringing it into line with other CESS majors;
- 2) clarifying the CESS general education requirements and increasing the number of required general education requirements from 15 to 21;
- 3) adding a new requirement for a set of IDM core courses to be taken within CESS (15 to 18 credits);
- 4) requiring students take at least 3 credits of an applied experience (e.g., travel course, service learning or practicum experience) within the 30 credits of self-selected IDM courses;
- 5) requiring that a minimum of 12 self-selected credits be taken at the 100-level or above
- 6) requiring students to take an approved Minor or Undergraduate Certificate from any college within the university;
- 7) adding a requirement for a capstone project (e.g., research, practicum experience with research component) that promotes systematic inquiry into a problem of interest to them

As a whole, these changes will provide students greater clarity on expectations and requirements for an IDM as well as establish a more structured core curriculum. The learning outcomes for students completing the revised IDM are listed below. A mechanism for assessing the program was detailed in the proposal.

- Demonstrate basic skills in research in the behavioral/social sciences:
- Demonstrate ability to think critically and synthesize key concepts within a self-selected area of study;
- Demonstrate ability to ask, seek out, and articulate answers to complex questions about own culture and other cultures;
- Demonstrate ability to undertake a systematic inquiry (e.g., research or other capstone experience) within self-selected area of study;

- Apply a basic understanding derived through an introduction to education, social work, and human development and family studies in a final capstone project involving systematic inquiry into a problem of interest; and
- Clearly communicate results of the systematic inquiry orally and in writing

Appointment of a Faculty Coordinator to oversee program functions will facilitate program delivery. Students' proposed courses of study will require review and approval from a faculty advisor, the Office of Student Services, and the IDM Faculty Coordinator. The faculty advisor and IDM Faculty Coordinator will take responsibility for ensuring that the proposal meets the intended content focus of the IDM, while the review by the Office of Student Services and coordinator will ensure that students are on track to fulfill all major requirements. The letter of support from Interim Chair of Education Michael Giangreco indicated that Department of Education funds, with additional support from the CESS Dean's office, will be used to support the establishment of the new coordinator position and costs associated with instruction of the capstone course. The proposers indicate that there may be a small increase in the number of students choosing to pursue an IDM, but that this will not exceed existing capacity in the courses (support letters from faculty were provided).

In addition to the faculty support letters noted, letters of support were provided by the Dean of CESS, Scott Thomas, the Chair of the Department of Social Work, Jan Fook, the Chair of the Department of Leadership and Developmental Studies, Jan Okech, and the Interim Chair of the Department of Education, Michael Giangreco.

Curricular Affairs Committee of the Faculty Senate

To: The UVM Faculty Senate

From: Curricular Affairs Committee of the Faculty Senate, Laura Almstead, Chair

Date: April 4, 2019

Re: Approval of a proposal to 1) establish a Bachelor of Social Work (BSW) degree at UVM and 2) convert

the current BS with a major in Social Work to a BSW degree from the College of Education and Social

Services

At its meeting on April 4, 2019, the Curricular Affairs Committee approved the actions recommended in the following memo.

The Curricular Affairs Committee approved a proposal from the Department of Social Work in the College of Education and Social Services (CESS) to establish a Bachelor of Social Work (BSW) degree at UVM, and to transition the existing Bachelor of Science with a major in Social Work to a BSW degree. Social Work is an accredited program and the curriculum, which meets the criteria for a BSW degree, will remain the same. If approved by the Faculty Senate and Board of Trustees, the Bachelor of Social Work degree would be established fall 2019. New students and students continuing a Social Work major will be able to choose to receive a BS or a BSW degree until Spring 2022 at which point all students completing a Social Work major will receive a BSW upon graduation. This end point will allow students that started a major in Social Work prior to the establishment of the BSW degree to receive a BS if they so choose.

A majority of institutions that offer accredited programs in social work award students Bachelor of Social Work degrees, including regional competitors such as the University of Maine and the University of Connecticut. Students that hold a BSW degree area eligible for limited, but substantive, professional work. The accrediting body (Council on Social Work Education) refers to all accredited undergraduate programs as offering BSW degrees. Therefore, although the curriculum for the Social Work major fits the expectations for a BSW degree, the Department of Social Work at UVM frequently has to defend the program to prospective students. Establishing a Bachelor of Social Work degree at UVM will help students completing the program as they move on to graduate studies or into the job force, and help UVM attract students to the program.

The request to establish a BSW degree at UVM and transition the current BS with a major in Social Work to a BSW degree was strongly supported by the Chair of the Department of Social Work, Jan Fook, the CESS Curriculum Committee, and the Dean of CESS, Scott Thomas.